
 

Page 1 of 58 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 26, 2019 

5:30 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
Call to Order and Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes of June 12, 2019. 

Public Comments 

Old Business 

2. Cherrywood Acres Minor Subdivision Plat 
 
Location: 4114 High Street 
Applicant: Anthony Runyan 
Previous discussion: June 12, 2019  
Recommendation: Recommend approval 
P&Z Action: Review and make a recommendation to City Council 

New Business 

3. Western Home Communities Ninth Addition Final Plat 
 
Location: Western Home Communities South Main Street Campus 
Applicant: Western Home Communities 
Previous discussion: None  
Recommendation: Recommend approval 
P&Z Action: Review and make recommendation to City Council 

4. The Terraces at West Glen Preliminary Plat 
 
Location: Southeast corner of Union Road and W. 12th Street 
Applicant: The Terraces at West Glen, LLC 
Previous discussion: None  
Recommendation: Review and continue discussion 
P&Z Action: Review and continue discussion at the July 10th P&Z Meeting 

5. Chrisbro Subdivision Preliminary Plat 
 
Location: 7213 Nordic Drive 
Applicant: Chrisbro III Inc. 
Previous discussion: None  
Recommendation: Recommend approval 
P&Z Action: Review and make recommendation to City Council 

Commission Updates 

Adjournment 

Reminders: 

1



 

Page 2 of 58 

* July 10th and July 24th Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings 
* July 1st and July 15th City Council Meetings 

  

2



 1 

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting 

June 12, 2019 
City Hall Council Chambers 

220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 

MINUTES 
 

The Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission met in regular session on Wednesday, June 12, 2019 at 
5:30 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa. The following Commission 
members were present: Adkins, Giarusso, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Leeper, Prideaux and Saul. Wingert was 
absent. Karen Howard, Community Services Manager and David Sturch, Planner III, were also present. 
 
1.) Chair Holst noted the Minutes from the May 22, 2019 regular meeting are presented. Ms. Saul made 

a motion to approve the Minutes as presented. Ms. Giarusso seconded the motion. The motion was 
approved unanimously with 7 ayes (Adkins, Giarusso, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Leeper and Saul), 1 
abstention (Prideaux) and 0 nays.  

 
2.) The first item of business was the Cherrywood Acres Minor Subdivision Plat. Chair Holst introduced 

the item and Mr. Sturch provided background information. He explained that the plat is located at the 
southwest corner of High Street and Union Road in the R-1 zoning district. He discussed lot and 
setback requirements, as well as utility needs, including water, electric, gas, sanitary sewer and 
drainage maintenance. This proposed minor plat satisfies the R-1 district standards. He explained 
that the item is just being presented at this time for discussion and comments.  

 
 Tony Runyan (petitioner), 4114 High Street, stated that he would like to build a new home as his 

family is growing. He noted that he knows there is a lot of push back from the neighbors and he 
would like to clear up any miscommunications on his intentions. His proposal exceeds R-1 lot 
standards and meets the required zoning ordinances. He discussed compromises with the location 
of the fire hydrant and water main extension from the existing main on the west side of Cherrywood 
Drive.  

 
 Susie Sigworth, 1028 Cherrywood Drive, is adjacent to Mr. Runyan’s back yard. She noted her 

concern with two homes abutting her property as well as the loss of her view to the northeast. She 
also stated that people outside of the 200’ proximity to Mr. Runyan’s property were not notified and 
she is concerned that many people in the area don’t know what is being planned.  

 
 Mark Sigworth, 1028 Cherrywood Drive, discussed proportional spacing between homes in the area 

and potential congestion in the neighborhood. He doesn’t believe it aligns with the rest of the 
neighborhood. He also believes the field of view will be significantly reduced and doesn’t believe this 
plan aligns with the beautification plan for the City. He discussed potential water runoff issues.  

 
 Bruce Adkins, 4201 Newland Drive, understands why Mr. Runyan would like to build a new home, 

but feels that the Deed Restrictions for the neighborhood may not allow for the proposed project. He 
also questioned whether there is a plan to create four lanes in that area of Union Road, as it would 
be too close to a house. 

 
 Abby Wood, 4213 Newland Drive, stated that she and her husband share the same concerns about 

curb appeal and the precedent that would be set if the project is allowed. 
 
 
 Sam Runyan, 4110 W. 1st Street, stated that the lot is unique to the area.  
 
 Mark Sigworth stated that the lot is not unique to the original lots from 1960.  

3



 2 

 
 Lisa Vry, 1017 Columbine Drive, stated concern with stormwater drainage. 
 
 Delbert Carpenter, 1005 Cherrywood Drive, stated he would really hate to see the family leave the 

neighborhood. He is a great neighbor and he understands why they would like to build a new house.  
 
 John Runchey, 920 Columbine Drive, noted that it is a unique neighborhood and suggests 

considering tearing the house down that is currently there and rebuild in that location. He doesn’t 
want to see the neighborhood subdivided. 

 
 Ms. Prideaux asked about the Deed Restriction document and what kind of impact it would have on 

the decision. Mr. Sturch clarified that it is a private covenant between the neighbors and they would 
have to investigate and make a determination from their legal representative on whether this 
restriction could be enforced. Howard noted that the City is not party to private subdivision 
covenants and so should not be a deciding factor for the Commission.  

 
 Mr. Holst asked about the setback requirements of this property in comparison to Mr. Sigworth’s 

property. It was clarified that they have the same requirements. Mr. Larson voiced concerns that 
there would not be much room to build. He doesn’t believe the proposal fits in that area, and would 
create more of an opportunity to create more lot splits. 

 
 Mr. Leeper voiced concerns with how tight the lot will be, particularly if there is expansion to Union 

Road. However, he doesn’t believe approval would set much of a precedent as there would only be 
limited opportunities for these types of splits in the neighborhood.  

 
 Ms. Saul asked why the City is asking for another hydrant and water main. Mr. Sturch explained that 

it is a service policy from CFU and the Fire Department. A new water main must be extended across 
the south side of High Street to the new property with a hydrant. Then a water service would be 
extended to the existing and proposed houses. He clarified that the Fire Code hydrant spacing 
standard is based on the ability to extend a fire hose to reach each home, and is not measured as 
the crow flies.  

 
Ms. Howard asked the Commission if they would like staff to do a general assessment of how many 
potential lot splits might be possible in the subdivision. The Commission agreed this would be 
helpful. Ms. Prideaux asked if water runoff could be discussed at the next meeting as well. Mr. 
Larson stated he is a big fan of separating old double lots and infill, however he doesn’t see how this 
particular lot will work and provide enough buildable area   

 
 The Commission will discuss the item at the next Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. 
 
3.) As there were no further comments, Mr. Hartley made a motion to adjourn. Mr. Leeper seconded the 

motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Adkins, Giarusso, Hartley, Holst, 
Larson, Leeper, Prideaux and Saul), and 0 nays. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 6:14 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Karen Howard       Joanne Goodrich  
Community Services Manager    Administrative Clerk 

4



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 TO: Planning and Zoning Commission  

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 
  Matt Tolan, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: June 19, 2019 

SUBJECT:      Cherrywood Acres Minor Plat 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Request to approve the Cherrywood Acres Minor Plat Case # MP19-001 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Anthony Runyan 

LOCATION:   
 

4114 High Street 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The property owner at 4114 High Street proposes a lot split to create a lot for a new residential 
dwelling at the southwest corner of High Street and Union Road. A minor plat is needed to split 
the original single lot into two lots.  
 
BACKGROUND 
Cherrywood Acres was created with large 
rural lots in 1960 when this 56 lot subdivision 
resided in the county. In 1971, the western 
and northern portions of Cedar Falls were 
annexed into the City which included 
Cherrywood Acres. The house at 4114 High 
Street was built in 1962. The property is 120 
feet wide (north/south) and 160 feet deep 
(east/west). The house is situated on the west 
half of the lot, facing north with a driveway 
onto High Street. There is approximately 100 
feet of yard area off the east side of the house. 
 
ANALYSIS 
4114 High Street is located in the R-1 Residence Zoning District. A single housing unit in R-1 
zoning is required to have a lot width of 75 feet and area of 9,000 square feet. The original lot is 
23,400 square feet in area. The Minor Plat proposes to create two lots: Parcel F (4114 High 

 

5



Street) will have an east/west width of 
107 feet and a north/south depth of 
120 feet with an area of 12,955 
square feet. Parcel G will have an 
east/west width of 92 feet and a 
north/south depth of 120 feet with an 
area of 10,441 square feet. 
 
The drawing to the right graphically 
depicts the lot split and building 
locations. The building setbacks in the 
R-1 district require a 30-foot front yard 
and a 30-foot rear yard area. The side 
yard areas are 10% of the width of the 
lot. A 25-foot building line was 
established on the plat to serve as a side yard setback along High Street. Since this is a newly 
created lot, the current R-1 standards must comply with a 30-foot front yard area as well as the 
remaining setback areas. The existing dwelling at 4114 High Street and the proposed dwelling 
on Parcel G satisfied the R-1 district setback standards. 
 
By applying the setbacks on this lot, the potential building area for a new dwelling and attached 
garage is approximately 1,968 square feet. The building envelope is 60’ north/south and 32.8’ 
east/west. This building area is similar in size to other dwellings in the neighborhood. The area 
of both lots will be half the size of the other lots in the neighborhood. The two parcels will still 
exceed the minimum R-1 lot area standards of 9,000 square feet. Both lots meet all zoning 
ordinance requirements if subdivided. 
 
At your last meeting, the Commission requested information regarding the potential for 
additional lot splits in Cherrywood Acres. After reviewing the original Cherrywood Acres plat, 
there appears to be only one additional lot that has the characteristics to meet the setback 
requirements for a lot split. However, extension of a street and other infrastructure would be 
necessary, which may prove cost prohibitive. This was a high level analysis based on the 
assumption that existing homes and garages would not be torn down to accomplish a lot split. It 
should also be noted that the City will not allow lots splits that would require new driveway curb 
cuts on to Union Road. By applying the R-1 setback standards, any new lot along with the 
existing dwelling must satisfy the 30-foot front yard and rear yard setback requirements. Also, 
the lots must be at least 100 feet in depth with a minimum lot area of 9,000 square feet. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including 
Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) 
personnel, has reviewed the 
proposed plat. The following items 
listed below are the technical 
comments for the development of 
this plat and proposed home. The 
solid lines on the plat represent the 
existing utility service locations and 
the dashed lines represent the 
proposed utility service lines. 

 

 

W
a
te

r 

G
a

s
 

S
a
n

it
a
ry

 

New Hydrant 

6



1. The existing underground electric line from the southeast corner of the lot to the existing 
house must be relocated and buried within the 10-foot utility easement along the south lot 
line. 

2. The existing 12” water main lies along the west side of Cherrywood Drive. The plat shows a 
new water main extension off the existing main extending to a hydrant located east of the 
existing driveway at 4114 High Street. According to the CFU and Fire Department policy for 
new development, the water main must be extended to the middle of the lot along High 
Street for the hydrant, as shown on the previous page. This will provide water service to both 
the existing dwelling at 4114 High Street and the proposed dwelling. Final fire hydrant and 
valve placement locations will be part of the construction review. 

3. Sanitary sewer service will be connected to the existing sewer on High Street. 
4. Gas service will be connected to the existing gas line on High Street. 
5. The Cherrywood Acres subdivision was developed with a rural roadway cross-section with 

no curb and gutter. There are ditches alongside the roadway that carry the stormwater 
through pipes under the driveways and in field tiles. The proposed driveway will have a 
culvert for the stormwater in the ditch. If the owner discovers a buried field tile during the 
construction of the home, that tile must be relocated and rerouted around the building’s 
foundation. 

6. The proposed driveway off of High Street must be at least 75 feet from the west edge of 
Union Road. 

7. There will be no access onto Union Road. 
 
The existing lot slopes from the 
southwest to the northeast. The 
ground elevation at the southwest 
corner of the proposed lot is 969’. 
This grade drops to 965’ near the 
northeast corner of the lot. All runoff 
will be directed to the ditch at the 
corner of Union Road and High 
Street. Some of the runoff will run 
directly to the Union Road ditch. 
The finish grade around the 
proposed home must follow these 
drainage patterns. The grading of 
the property must be done so that it 
does not affect the adjacent lot or 
adjacent roadway. The existing ditch along High Street and Union Road must not be disturbed. 

 
The property is located outside the floodplain overlay district. 
 
A notice of this minor plat was mailed to the property owners/residents in the east half of the 
Cherrywood Acres subdivision on June 20, 2019, which far exceeds the typical 200’ notification 
area.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the Cherrywood Acres 
Minor Plat with the following conditions: 
 

1. Extend the water main across the north lot line for the placement of the hydrant east 

 

7



of the existing driveway. 
2. The existing home must be connected to the water main.  
3. Any comments or direction specified by the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
4. Conform to all city staff recommendations and technical requirements. 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion 
6/12/2019 

The first item of business was the Cherrywood Acres Minor Subdivision Plat. 
Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Sturch provided background information. 
He explained that the plat is located at the northwest corner of Union Road and 
12th Street in the R-1 zoning district. He discussed lot and setback requirements, 
as well as utility needs, including water, electric, gas, sanitary sewer and 
drainage maintenance. This proposal satisfies R-1 lot standards and meets the 
required zoning ordinances. He explained that the item is just being presented at 
this time for discussion and comments.  
 
Tony Runyan (petitioner), 4114 High Street, stated that he would like to build a 
new home as his family is growing. He discussed to need compromises with 
issues with an issue with a fire hydrant. 
 
The following comments came from the property owners in the neighborhood.  

 Susie Sigworth at 1028 Cherrywood Drive. She noted her concern with two 
homes abutting her property as well as the loss of her view. She also stated 
that people outside of the 200’ proximity to Mr. Runyan’s property were not 
notified and she is concerned that many people in the area don’t know what 
is being planned.  

 Mark Sigworth at 1028 Cherrywood Drive. He discussed the proportional 
spacing in the area and potential congestion in the neighborhood. He doesn’t 
believe it aligns with the rest of the neighborhood. He also believes the field 
of view will be significantly reduced and doesn’t believe this plan aligns with 
the beautification plan for the City. He discussed potential water runoff 
issues.  

 Bruce Adkins at 4201 Newland Drive. He understands why Mr. Runyan 
would like to build a new home, but feels that the Deed Restrictions for the 
neighborhood may not allow for the proposed project. He also questioned 
whether there is a plan to create four lanes in that area of Union Road, as it 
would be too close to a house. 

 Abby Wood at 4213 Newland Drive. She stated that she and her husband 
share the same concerns about curb appeal and the precedent that would be 
set if the project is allowed. 

 Sam Runyan at 4110 W. 1st Street. He stated that the lot is unique to the 
area.  

 Mark Sigworth stated that the lot is not unique to the original lots from 1960.  

 Lisa Vry at 1017 Columbine Drive. Has a concern with stormwater drainage. 

 Delbert Carpenter at 1005 Cherrywood Drive. He stated he would really hate 
to see the family leave the neighborhood. He is a great neighbor and he 
understands why they would like to build a new house.  

 John Runchey at 920 Columbine Drive. He noted that it is a unique 
neighborhood and suggests considering tearing the house down that is 
currently there and rebuild in that location. He doesn’t want to see the 

8



neighborhood subdivided. 
 

The comment period ended and the commission provided some comments and 
questions. Ms. Prideaux asked about the Deed Restriction document and what 
kind of impact it would have on the decision. Mr. Sturch clarified that it is a 
private covenant between the neighbors and they would have to investigate and 
make a determination from their representation on whether it can be split.  
 
Mr. Holst asked about the setback requirements of this property in comparison to 
Mr. Sigworth’s property. It was clarified that they have the same requirements. 
Mr. Larson voiced concerns that there would not be much room to build. He 
doesn’t believe the proposal fits in that area, and would create more of an 
opportunity to create more lot splits. 
 
Mr. Leeper voiced concerns with how tight the lot will be, particularly if there is 
expansion to Union Road. He doesn’t believe there will be much changing the 
precedent as it is not possible in many locations. 
 
Ms. Saul asked why the City is asking for another hydrant and water main. Mr. 
Sturch explained that it is a service policy from CFU. Ms. Howard stated that at 
the next meeting questions could be addressed about precedence. Ms. Prideaux 
asked if water runoff could be discussed at the next meeting as well.  
 
Mr. Larson stated he is a big fan of separating old double lots and infill, however 
he doesn’t see how this particular lot will work.   
 
The Commission will discuss the item at the next Planning and Zoning 
Commission meeting. 

 
 

9



Robinson-Dresser
Sports Complex

Pheasant Ridge
Golf Course

C
he

rry
w
oo

d 
P
l

C
o

lu
m

b
in

e
 D

r

High St

Cherrywood Dr

Sonoma Dr

Autumn Ridge Rd

R

ocky RidgeRd

Alexis Blvd

Granite Ridge Rd

Normandy Dr

W 12th St

Newland Dr

Harvest Ln

U
n
io

n
 R

d

W 12th St

R-1

RP

RP

A-1

A-1

A-1

Cedar Falls Planning & Zoning Commission
June 26, 2019

Cherrywood Acres Minor Plat

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

H
u

d
s
o

n
R

d

C
e

d
a

r
H

e
ig

hts

D
r

P
r
a

irie
P

k
w

y

WRidg

eway Ave

University Ave

W
aterloo

R
d

Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

Vik
in

gRd

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Greenhill Rd

C

ente
r

S
t

S
 M

a
in

 S
t

M
a

in
 S

t

W 1st St

W 12th St

U
n

io
n
 R

d

E 1st St

W 27th St

Lincoln St

N

U
nion

R
d

E Lone Tree Rd

L
e

v
e

rs
e

e
R

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

10



11



12



13



14



15



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 
  Matthew Tolan, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: June 19, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Western Home Communities Ninth Addition Final Plat 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to approve the Western Home Communities Ninth Addition Final Plat 
Plat. Case #FP19-005 
 
This request also includes the vacation of a 15-foot wide pedestrian trail and 
access easement 
 

PETITIONER: Western Home Communities, Claassen Engineering 
 

LOCATION: 
 

The property is located on 18.33 acres of land at the southwest corner of 
Prairie Parkway and Prairie View Road in the Western Home Campus on S. 
Main Street 
 

 

PROPOSAL 
Western Home Communities is proposing another phase for condominium/villa development 
along the south side of Prairie View Road. The Western Home Communities Ninth Addition will 
create 18 lots intended for retirement two unit/condos, similar to the recent development that 
has occurred on nearby Caraway Lane, Sweet Basil Lane and Shooting Star Way. The lots are 
similar in size from the previous phases, typically ranging from 0.33 acres to 0.6 acres. New 
streets extending south off of Prairie View Road include Caraway Lane, Savory Lane and 
Lemongrass Drive. All street are to be constructed to 31 ft. paving width. 
 
Also as a part of this request includes the vacation of a 15-foot wide pedestrian trail access 
easement along the southern edge of the Western Home property on S. Main Street, a portion 
of this easement is located on the south boundary of this plat. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Final Plat for the Western Home Communities Seventh Addition was approved by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission in the spring of 2015 and by the City Council in the fall of the 
same year. The seventh addition created 17 lots to allow the construction of the new Diamond 
Event Center and Jorgensen Plaza. Caraway Lane was installed as a private 29-foot wide 
roadway extending south of Prairie View Road approximately 225 feet to access the 

16



aforementioned Diamond Event Center. 
The seventh addition also created 
additional lots for new two unit condos 
on Sweet Basil Lane and Shooting Star 
Way. Finally, included in the Seventh 
Addition was a large 16.7 acre tract 
located at the southwest corner of 
Prairie View Road and Prairie Parkway. 
This tract was set aside for future 
development of the Western Home 
Communities South Main Street 
campus. The proposed ninth addition is 
essentially a replat of the 
aforementioned tract in the Western 
Home Seventh Addition. 
 
A 15-foot wide pedestrian trail access easement lies across the southern boundary of the 
Western Home Campus from S. Main Street to Prairie Parkway. This easement is identified in 
the Western Home Communities 4th Addition, 7th Addition and 8th Addition. During the planning 
for the Highway 58 intersection at Viking Road, the easement was established to route 
pedestrians and cyclists around the interchange by travelling along the backside of the Blains 
and Wal-Mart retail stores to Prairie Parkway. The actual easement sits within a sloped area 
with overhead utilities. Grading this easement for a trail will be difficult to achieve with the 
existing features on the site. Since the completion of the aforementioned study, the trail 
alignment changed to route the pedestrians and cyclists to Brandilynn Boulevard and Viking 
Road. This section of trail has been completed as part of the highway 58 and Viking Road 
interchange project. There is no need for a pedestrian easement along the south property 
boundary of the Western Home Campus.  
 
ANALYSIS 
Western Home Communities proposes to plat 18.33 acres of land at the southwest corner of 
Prairie View Road and Prairie Parkway. The area will continue with the development of the 
condominium/villas. The property is located in the MU District which permits this type of 
development. The Commission has reviewed the proposed condos/villas in the past and the 
plan is to construct similar units in the proposed ninth addition. 
 
Tract A is reserved for the new street extension of Caraway Lane, Savory Lane and 
Lemongrass Drive. Tract B is reserved for street right of way and a potential street extension 
into the future development of Outlot A. Tract C is the existing street right of way for Caraway 
Lane that currently serves access into the Jorgenson Event Center. This section of Caraway 
Lane would become a public street. All streets will be 31 feet wide. At this time, Western Home 
has no plans to add additional condos/villas in Outlot A. With no development plans identified for 
Outlot A, planned access locations must be established for this large vacant parcel. Prairie 
Parkway to the east is a “controlled” roadway with limited access locations which is established 
at the Prairie Parkway and Prairie View Road roundabout. Access to the south is not an option 
since this is an undeveloped commercial lot that is associated with the Pinnacle Prairie 
Commercial South development. This leaves the access locations onto Prairie View Road to the 
north and the proposed Savory Lane to the west. The access location on the north side of Outlot 
A (Prairie View Road) must line up with the existing street locations of Sweet Basil Lane and 
Shooting Star Way. Access to the west, if necessary, is identified in Tract B at the south end of 

 

15’ wide pedestrian easement 

17



Lemongrass Drive. It is important to provide multiple street connections to adjacent lots for 
adequate access, traffic flow and emergency response vehicles.      
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, noted that the water, gas 
and communication services are available to the site. The developer will be responsible for 
extending the utility services to the proposed development. The easements identified on the plat 
satisfy CFU requirements. Drainage easements are identified on the plat between Lots 1 
through 10, and along the south and east edge of the plat. The 30’ drainage easement along the 
west side of Prairie Parkway is subject to overland flows and must not be impeded. Future site 
plan review of this area will require restrictions on the placement of any landscaping and 
vegetation. 
 
City zoning staff notes that the proposed lots are sufficient in size to meet the anticipated 
development plans. The MU District is more flexible than other districts in terms of minimum lot 
area, lot width, etc. The MU district allows a 20 foot setback adjacent to all roadways and a 30 
foot setback is permitted around the MU district boundary. Zero side lot line setbacks are 
allowed. The proposed plan will be similar to the previous additions in the Western Home 
development. The front yard setbacks will be 20 feet and the setback along the district boundary 
on the south side of this plat is 39 feet, due to a drainage and utility easement. It is anticipated 
that these lots will be developed in the traditional manner with adequate front, rear and side yard 
setbacks. 
 
The property is located outside of the designated 100-year floodplain.   
 
The preliminary plat was recommended for approval by the Planning and Zoning Commission 
on May 8, 2019. The City Council approved the Western Home Ninth Addition preliminary plat 
on May 20, 2019. The developer is proceeding with the construction and installation of all 
required public infrastructure such as streets, sewers and other utilities. No lot sales or new 
home construction can begin until a Final Plat is approved by the City Council. The platting 
documents including the Deed of Dedication, City Council resolution forms and a plat fee of 
have been submitted. 
 
City technical review staff does not have any concerns with the vacation of the 15-foot wide 
pedestrian and trail easement along the south side of the Western Home S. Main Street 
Campus. The other utility and drainage easements in this area will remain.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the Western Home 
Communities Ninth Addition Final Plat and the vacation of the 15-foot wide pedestrian easement 
with the following stipulations: 

1) Any comments or direction specified by the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
2) Conform to all city staff recommendations and technical requirements. 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
6/12/2019 

 

  
 

18



Industrial
Park

Wild Rye Way

Bluegrass Ct

P
ra

ir
ie

P
k
w

y

S
a
in

ts
D

r

Parsley Dr

Spruce Hills Dr

Viking Plaza Dr

Kael Trl

Prairie View Rd

Brandilynn Blvd

Cordoba Ave

Alvarado Ave

E
s
ta

te
 D

r

O
rcha

rd
H

ill
D

r

T
h

y
m

e
R

d

Q
u
e
sa

da
Ct

Rosemary Dr

W
a

lm
a

rt
 D

r

A
n
d

re
a

 D
r

Blackhawk Ln

C
a

ra
w

a
y
 L

n

W
in

te
rb

e
r ry

D
r

Bluebell Rd

O
re

lla
n
a

A
v
e

J
am

e
s

D
r

Pizarr o

C
t

K
y
lie

Ct

Shooting Star Way

S
 M

a
in

 S
t

Nordic Ridge Dr

S
a
g

e
R

d

S
w

e
e

t
B

a
s
i l

L
n

Iris Dr

Q
u
e

s
a
d
a

Ave

Nordic Dr

Westminster Dr

Enterprise

D
r

Balboa Ave

Hyacinth Dr

Bluegrass C ir

Viking Rd

S
 M

a
in

 S
t

Greenhill Rd

Prairie
Pkw

y

M-2-P

R-4

R-1

A-1

M-1

A-1

RP

A-1
R-1

R-3

M-2

R-1
R-2

RP

M-1-P

P

A-1

A-1

HWY-1

A-1

MU

MU

®¬27

®¬58

UPS

Hy Pro

Star
4D

Martin Bros
Distributing

Retail

Viking Pump
Blain's
Farm &
Fleet

Walmart

Target

Martin
Bros

Scheels

Retail

Hobby LobbyUniversal
Industries

Standard Distribution

John Deere
Tractor

Operations

Cedar Falls Planning & Zoning Commission
June 26, 2019

Western Home Ninth Additon Final
and Pedestrian Easement Vacation

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

H
u

d
s
o

n
R

d

C
e

d
a

r
H

e
ig

hts

D
r

P
r
a

irie
P

k
w

y

WRidg

eway Ave

University Ave

W
aterloo

R
d

Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

Vik
in

gRd

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Greenhill Rd

C

ente
r

S
t

S
 M

a
in

 S
t

M
a

in
 S

t

W 1st St

W 12th St

U
n

io
n
 R

d

E 1st St

W 27th St

Lincoln St

N

U
nion

R
d

E Lone Tree Rd

L
e

v
e

rs
e

e
R

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

19



                             















LOT  1

LOT  2

LOT  3

LOT  4

LOT  6

LOT  7

LOT  8

LOT  5

LOT  9

LOT  10

LOT  11

LOT  14

LOT  13

LOT  12

LOT  16

LOT  15





























LOT  17

LOT  18

20



 

Deed of Dedication – Western Home Communities Ninth Addition Page 1 of 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Preparer: Mark F. Conway c/o Swisher & Cohrt, PLC,  (319) 232-6555 Phone 

P.O. Box 1200, 528 W. 4th St., Waterloo, IA 50704  (319) 232-4835 Fax 

 

DEED OF DEDICATION 
 

WESTERN HOME COMMUNITIES NINTH ADDITION 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:  

 

That the undersigned, Western Home Services, Inc., an Iowa nonprofit corporation, being desirous 

of laying out and platting into lots and tracts the real estate described in the  Certificate of Survey 

prepared by David L. Scheil, a Registered Land Surveyor, dated the ____ day of _________ 2019, 

attached as Exhibit “A” do by these presents, designate and set apart the real estate described in 

the plat showing location and numbers and letters of lots and names and locations of streets as a 

subdivision of the City of Cedar Falls, in Black Hawk County, Iowa, the same to be known 

hereafter and called Western Home Communities Ninth Addition, Cedar Falls, Iowa (at times 

herein, the “Ninth Addition”), all of which is with the free consent and desire of the undersigned. 

The owners do hereby grant and convey to the City of Cedar Falls, its successors and assigns and 

to any private corporation, firm or person furnishing utilities for the transmission and/or 

distribution of water, sanitary sewer, gas, electricity, communication service or cable television, 

perpetual easements for the erection, laying, building and maintenance of such services over, 

across, on and/or under the property as shown on the attached plat.  

 

ADJACENT SUBDIVISIONS AND UNPLATTED PARCELS 

 

The Western Home Communities Ninth Addition was formerly described as Tract “E” in the 

Western Home Communities Seventh Addition. The Ninth Addition will be bordered on the west 

by Caraway Lane and the existing the Prairie Winds / Jorgensen Plaza development in the Western 

Home Communities Eighth Addition; on the north by residential villas in the Western Home 

Communities Seventh Addition; on the south by the Gencom Subdivision (Walmart) and Pinnacle 

Prairie Commercial South – Phase IV Subdivision (Greenhill Estates, Inc. & Hobby Lobby); and 

on the east by the remaining unplatted portion of Tract “E” and Tract “C” owned by Western Home 

Services, Inc. The east border of the Ninth Addition is known as Prairie Parkway. Prairie View 

Road runs between Prairie Parkway on the east and Caraway Lane on the west and will serve as 

the northern border of the Ninth Addition. Caraway Lane will extend from the north to south along 

21



 

Deed of Dedication – Western Home Communities Ninth Addition Page 2 of 6 

the western border of the Ninth Addition. All streets provide public access to, from and within the 

Ninth Addition. 

 

COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS 

 

The undersigned do also covenant and agree for themselves, and their successors and assigns, that 

each and all of the lots in the subdivision shall be, and the same are hereby made subject to the 

following restrictions upon their use and occupancy as fully and effectively to all intents and 

purposes as if the same were set forth and contained in each deed of conveyance or mortgage that 

the undersigned or its successors in interest may hereafter make for any of the lots, and that such 

restrictions shall run with the land and with each individual lot thereof for the length of time and 

in the particulars hereinafter stated, to-wit:  

 

1. All lots and tracts shall be known as and available for such uses as may be permitted under 

the zoning regulations of the City of Cedar Falls, in effect at that time, as may be amended 

from time to time, except as otherwise restricted in this Deed of Dedication.  

2. Structures are restricted to those allowed in Mixed Use Residential Zoning Districts and as 

may be permitted under the applicable zoning regulations of the City of Cedar Falls, as 

may be amended from time to time, except as otherwise restricted in this Deed of 

Dedication. 

3. Each portion of the property shall be made subject to the covenants, restrictions, easements, 

obligations, and other provisions of that certain Charter for Pinnacle Prairie Commercial 

Properties recorded prior to the conveyance of the property (such Charter, as it may be 

amended from time to time in accordance with its terms, is referred to herein as the 

"Charter").  The Charter shall be binding upon the owners, lessees, and occupants of each 

portion of the property made subject to the Charter and any other person or entity holding 

any interest in such property, as well as their respective guests and invitees.  The record 

owner of each lot or condominium unit within the property subject to the Charter shall, 

upon acquisition of title to such lot or unit, automatically become a member of a mandatory 

membership owners association as identified in the Charter (the "Association"), and shall 

remain a member as long as he/she/it holds title to such property.  Membership in the 

Association shall be appurtenant to and may not be separated from ownership of such lot 

or condominium unit.  The Association shall be organized to perform such obligations and 

exercise such powers as are assigned and granted to it in the Charter and its articles of 

incorporation and bylaws, which may include, without limitation, administering and 

enforcing the Charter, the design guidelines adopted pursuant thereto, and such reasonable 

rules as the Association may adopt consistent with the Charter, and maintenance of 

common areas and other property as authorized in the Charter and supplements 

thereto.   Each record owner shall have such voting rights in the Association and such 

liability for a share of the common expenses of the Association as described in the Charter 

and the by-laws of the Association.  The financial obligations of each record owner to the 

Association shall be a personal obligation of such owner and shall be secured by a lien in 

favor of the Association against the owner's property under the Charter.  

4. The subdivision is in the Central Service Area of the Charter for Pinnacle Prairie 

Commercial Properties. Responsibility for maintenance costs within this service area is 

22



 

Deed of Dedication – Western Home Communities Ninth Addition Page 3 of 6 

detailed on Exhibit “B”, the same previously acknowledged by the City in its approval of 

the Western Home Communities Seventh Addition. Responsibility for maintaining 

drainage and detention basins within this service area is detailed on Exhibit “C”, the same 

previously acknowledged by the City in its approval of the Western Home Communities 

Seventh Addition. 

5. Any and all drainage easements shall be required to follow the "Stormwater Management 

Plan" on record with the City of Cedar Falls Engineer's Office. No building structures, 

fence structures, landscaping structures, private gardens or any other possible obstruction 

shall be built in and over such drainage easements. All lot owners and/or contractors 

working on such lots will be responsible to maintain such easements and keep the same 

free and clear of any physical obstruction(s) thus allowing the conveyance of overland 

storm water runoff as intended per the City’s Stormwater Management Plan. 

6. No grading or other construction shall be performed on any lot in the subdivision that 

blocks the flow of surface drainage water. 

7. Any footing drain tiles, roof-leaders, sump pump systems installed in conjunction with the 

construction of a residence shall be expelled into the front, rear, or side yard or longitudinal 

sub-drains in the street and shall not be expelled into any sanitary sewer system or directly 

onto the street.  

8. All buildings to be erected on any lot shall be constructed within building lines as indicated 

on the plat, and within City of Cedar Falls building and zoning ordinances.  

9. No trailer, basement, tent, shack, garage, barn or other outbuilding in the tract shall at any 

time be used as a residence temporarily or permanently nor shall any residence of a 

temporary character be permitted.  

10. The titleholder of each lot and tract, vacant or improved, shall keep the same free of weeds 

and debris.  

11. No obnoxious or offensive trade shall be carried on upon any lot or tract, nor shall anything 

be done thereon which may be or become an annoyance or nuisance to the neighborhood.  

12. All subsequent owners of lots in the subdivision shall be obligated to meet any 

requirements imposed by the Commissioners of the Black Hawk County Conservation 

District or any other governmental agency, by the authority of Chapter 467A, Code of 

Iowa, as amended by the 73rd General Assembly, pertaining to soil erosion control plans 

for certain land disturbing activities. This covenant shall be perpetual and shall run with 

the land.   

13. Mailboxes shall be clustered in a common neighborhood monument-type mailboxes 
arrangement as required by the United States Postal Department. 

14. The Developer shall perform the construction duties necessary to establish the common 

area, green spaces, entrance, retention pond(s) and surrounding access areas. The 

Developer shall initially maintain the common area, green spaces, entrance retention 

pond(s) and surrounding access of the development (whether located in such subdivision 

or serving such subdivision but located outside thereof). Such ownership and maintenance 

shall include, without limitation, common neighborhood monument-type mailboxes, 

mowing, watering, including upkeep of any underground sprinkler systems, snow removal 

23



 

Deed of Dedication – Western Home Communities Ninth Addition Page 4 of 6 

of common areas, maintenance of any retention pond(s) and/or water retention/detention 

area(s), and comply with all water quality issues set forth by the City of Cedar Falls in the 

Maintenance and Repair Agreement for the Western Home Communities Ninth Addition. 

15. No dwelling or building on any lot in the subdivision shall be occupied until the exterior is 

completed and finished, the interior is substantially completed and finished, and the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, issues an occupancy permit. All construction and landscaping shall 

be completed within 12 months of issuance of building permit by the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa.  

16. No old or used buildings shall be moved upon any of the lots in the subdivision for any 

purpose and all buildings on any lot in the subdivision shall be kept in a reasonable state 

of repair and upkeep,  

17. Inoperable cars, trucks, or other vehicles or equipment shall not be parked or stored on any 

street or driveway in the subdivision or kept upon any lot unless the same are entirely 

enclosed in a permanent structure.  

18. Commercial and recreational equipment and vehicles of any type, whether camping, boat, 

utility, trailers of any type, snowmobile, tractors of any type, or otherwise, shall not be 

parked on driveway in the subdivision or kept upon any residentially zoned lot unless the 

same be entirely enclosed in a permanent structure, or unless said vehicle as hereinabove 

described is owned by a guest or invitee of the owner of said lot, in which case, such 

exception shall not continue for more than thirty (30) days.  

19. No bus, semi-tractor, trailer, or truck of any kind, except what is commonly described as a 

"pickup truck", shall be kept or parked on any residential lot or street in the subdivision, 

provided, however, that this prohibition shall not apply to such vehicles driven in the 

subdivision in pursuit of and conducting their usual business.  

20. No concrete block, hollow tile construction, modular or pre-built home, earth home, or 

geodesic dome building is to be erected on any lot in the residentially zoned area.  

21. No trees or shrubs shall be planted by any lot owner within the street right-of-way.  

22. No radio station or short-wave operators shall construct reception or transmission towers 

on a lot, nor operate or conduct transmissions from any lot, which shall cause interference 

to audio or video reception upon any other lot. A satellite dish may be attached to a dwelling 

on any lot, provided that it shall be attached to the rear of any dwelling and no closer to the 

side lot lines than such dwelling.  

23. No horses, poultry, rabbits or livestock of any variety shall be kept or raised, nor shall any 

outdoor kennels housing more than two dogs be maintained on any lot in the subdivision.  

24. All provisions herein shall be enforceable by appropriate legal proceedings by any present 

or future owner of the legal or equitable title to any lot in said subdivision. Invalidation of 

any one or more of the within restrictions by judgment or decree of court shall not be 

regarded as affecting the validity of any of the other provisions hereof, nor shall any judicial 

determination with respect to any of the restrictive provisions hereof be regarded as 

affecting the validity or sufficiency of this instrument as a deed of dedication of said plat.  

25. The undersigned and all persons and corporations hereafter acquiring any right, title, or 

interest in any of the lots in said subdivision shall be taken and held to have agreed and 

24



 

Deed of Dedication – Western Home Communities Ninth Addition Page 5 of 6 

covenanted with the owners of all other lots in this subdivision and with the respective 

successors and assigns of all of the rest of such other lots to conform to and observe all of 

the foregoing covenants, restrictions and stipulations as to the construction of building 

thereon, for a period of 21 years from the date of filing of said plat, and this Deed of 

Dedication for record, unless by a vote of a majority of the then owners of the lots, it is 

agreed to change the said covenants in full or in part. Within the period of 21 years and in 

accordance with Iowa Code Sections 614.24 and 614.25 or their successor provisions, these 

covenants, restrictions and stipulations may be extended for an additional 21 years upon 

compliance with Sections 614.24 and 614.25 of the Code of Iowa. In the event an extension 

of the covenants, restrictions and stipulations is not filed within the period of 21 years or 

successive 21-year periods, then the covenants, restrictions and stipulations contained 

herein shall terminate at the end of the existing period of 21 years.  

 

DEDICATION AND CONSTRUCTION OF STREETS,  

SEWERS, UTILITIES AND OTHER IMPROVEMENTS 

The undersigned agree:  

1. That sanitary sewer, together with all necessary manholes and sewer service lines to all lots 

in the plat will be provided.  

2. That utilities, as required by the Subdivision Ordinance of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

shall be installed.  

3. That City water and municipal fire hydrants will be provided as required by the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa.  

4. That the streets described on the attached Plat are hereby dedicated to the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, and set apart for public use for street purposes.  

5. That the recreational trails described on the attached Plat are hereby dedicated to the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and set apart for public use for recreational purposes. 

6. That permanent easements will be provided for turn-arounds at the end of any streets 

described on the attached Plat. 

7. That off-site easements will be provided for storm sewers and sanitary sewers.  

8. That a 4-foot wide portland cement concrete sidewalk, 4 inches thick, and a concrete 

surface or hard surface entrance and parking area will be installed during or immediately 

after the construction of a building on any particular lot, and that the sidewalk will be 

constructed across the full width of the lot and on corner lots; also, across the parking and 

full length of the lot. The above notwithstanding, sidewalks and recreational trails shall be 

installed as buildings are constructed on all lots and tracts, or within 5 years from the date 

of the acceptance of the final plat, whichever comes first.  

9. That the work and improvements called for herein shall be in accordance with the 

construction plans and specifications approved by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and 

performed under the supervision of the Engineer hired by the owners, with review of such 

Engineer's certified completion statement by the City Engineer. If the undersigned, its 

grantees and assigns fail to complete the work and improvements called for herein within 

one year from the date of the acceptance of said final plat by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

25



 

Deed of Dedication – Western Home Communities Ninth Addition Page 6 of 6 

the City may then make the improvements and assess the costs of the same to the respective 

lots. The owners, for themselves, their successors, grantees and assigns, waive all statutory 

requirements of notice of time and place of hearing and waive statutory protections and 

limitations as to cost and assessments and agree that the City may install said improvements 

and assess the total costs thereof against the lot.  

10. That the City may perform the work, levy the cost thereof as assessments, and the 

undersigned agree that said assessments so levied shall be a lien on the respective lots with 

the same force and effect as though all legal provisions pertaining to the levy of such special 

assessments have been observed, and further authorize the City Clerk to certify such 

assessments to the County Auditor as assessments to be paid in installments as provided 

by law.  

 

Executed this ____ day of _________ 2019.  

 

WESTERN HOME SERVICES, INC. 

    

 

By: ___________________________  

Name: Kris W. Hansen   

Title:   Chief Executive Officer  

 

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) ss: 

 On this ____ day of _________ 2019,  before me, a Notary Public in and for the State of 

Iowa, personally appeared Kris W. Hansen, to me personally known who, being by me duly sworn, 

did say that she is the Chief Executive Officer of Western Home Services, Inc., the corporation 

executing the within and foregoing instrument; that no seal has been procured by the corporation; 

that this instrument was signed on behalf of the corporation by authority of its Board of Directors; 

and that Kris W. Hansen as Chief Executive Officer acknowledged the execution of this instrument 

to be the voluntary act and deed of the corporation, by it and by him voluntarily executed.  

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

            Notary Public in and for said State 

 

 

26



 

Deed of Dedication – Western Home Communities Ninth Addition  

Exhibit “A” 

 

Certificate of Survey – See Attached. 

 

 

27



 

Deed of Dedication – Western Home Communities Ninth Addition  

 

Exhibit “B” 

 

Responsibility for Maintaining the Streets and Features – See Attached. 

 

 

28



29



 

Deed of Dedication – Western Home Communities Ninth Addition  

 

Exhibit “C” 

 

Responsibility for Maintaining Drainage and Detention – See Attached. 

 

 

30



31



Existing (Relocated) Recreational Trail

Viking Rd

Prairi
e View Rd

P
ra

ir
ie

 P
k

w
y

H
w

y
 5

8

Hyacinth Dr

S
. 

M
a

in
 S

t

15' wide pedestrian trail and access easement (request to vacate)

Western Home Communities
Pedestrain Trail Access Easement Vacation

Location Map

32



33



34



35



36



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 
  Matt Tolan, Civil Engineer II  

 DATE: June 18, 2019 

 SUBJECT: The Terraces at West Glen Preliminary Plat 
 

 
REQUEST: Request to approve The Terraces at West Glen Preliminary Plat 

 
PETITIONER: The Terraces at West Glen, LLC, Owner; Fehr Graham, Engineer 

 
LOCATION: 
 

Southeast corner of Union Road and W. 12th Street 

 

PROPOSAL 
The petitioner is requesting approval of 
a preliminary plat that would create six 
residential lots and two outlots on 239 
acres of land. This subdivision is for the 
New Aldaya Lifescapes campus that 
was rezoned to RP, planned residence 
along with a land use map amendment 
to planned development/floodplain by 
the Planning and Zoning Commission 
on February 27, 2019 and approved by 
the City Council on April 15, 2019. 
 
BACKGROUND 
New Aldaya Lifescapes is planning a 55 
and over housing development at the southeast corner of Union Road and W. 12th Street. The 
proposed plat includes this development as well as the entire holdings of the property owner. 
The entire plat encompasses 239 acres of land that extends from the Union Road and W. 12th 
Street intersection southward to W. 27th Street. The intent is to split the northeast 42.35 acres 
for the proposed housing development. The focus of the plat is located in this area with the 
development of the public infrastructure and lots. The remaining 196 acres is identified as an 
outlot for future rezoning and platting development.   
 
Prior to developing this land, a preliminary plat must be submitted to the city for review by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council. A preliminary plat must follow the ordinance 

 

37



standards so that adequate provisions are made for public facilities (roads, sidewalks, 
storm/sanitary sewer), stormwater management and services (utilities). The 42.35 acre area 
included in the preliminary plat in consistent with the master plan submitted with the the RP 
zoning district and is consistent with the amended Future Land Use Map designation of 
“planned development/floodplain.” The remaining 197 acres is an outlot that will require 
rezoning and platting at a later date. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The preliminary plat must include the total land holdings of the owner on adjacent land or 
abutting the area intended for immediate development. This provision of the code applies in 
this case where the owner has 239 acres of land and the immediate development of this area 
focuses on the northwest 42 acres for the New Aldaya campus. New Aldaya is under contract 
to purchase the 42 acres from the current property owner. The remaining 197 acres are 
located in an outlot intended for future development at a later date. After the preliminary plat has 
been approved by the City Council, typically a final plat is developed in phases, as long as it is 
in substantial conformance with the preliminary plat. 
 
The remaining portions of this staff report will focus on the immediate development of the 42 
acres of land at the southeast corner of Union Road and W. 12th Street. The property includes 
a waterway feature that is part of the floodplain district. This waterway divides the 42 acres 
into two sections. The area west of the waterway is intended for initial development and the 
area on the east is for future development of the Lifescapes Campus. 
 
The proposed plat 
includes six 
residential lots, six 
tracts, two outlots 
and a floodplain 
running through the 
center of the plat on 
239 acres. The RP 
zoning district allows the platting to conform to the development plan that was presented during 
the rezoning of this property. The plan is to create large lots for multiple dwellings instead of the 
one dwelling per lot format. Each lot provides the minimum 20 foot building setback from the 
internal streets and the 35-foot setback from the external streets of Union Road and W. 12th 
Street. The table above summarizes the area and use for each lot. 
 
Floodplain – The floodplain 
flows through the 
development from 
northwest to southeast. 
This floodplain is a grassed 
waterway through the 
upper portion of the 
University Branch of Dry 
Run Creek that begins at 
W. 12th Street.  
Approximately 109 acres of 
drainage from the north 
and northwest enters this 

Lot Lot Area Proposed Use 

1 6.165 ac 1 & 2 unit and three story multi-unit dwellings (16.6% in 
floodplain) 

2 2.329 ac 1 & 2 unit dwellings 

3 2.350 ac Two story multi-unit dwellings 

4 3.663 ac 1 and 2 unit dwellings 

5 4.281 ac 1 and 2 unit dwellings 

6 1.308 ac 1 and 2 unit dwellings 

 

38



waterway. The limits of the floodplain have changed over the years beginning with a wide 
floodplain shown on the 1985 maps to a more reduced floodplain in 2014. These revisions 
reflect better data over time based on clear aerial photos and digital elevation models. The 
previous flood maps had the ground elevations at a 5 foot vertical accuracy rating and the newer 
maps show a 4”-8” vertical accuracy rating. Recently, the petitioner’s engineer submitted a 
LOMA (Letter of Map Amendment) to FEMA with actual ground elevations and profiles of the 
floodplain. This LOMA shows the floodplain to be completely located in Tract A and out of Lot 1 
and Outlot A. The grassed waterway shows small amounts of wetlands contained within the 
channel due to field tile run off. The proposed plan is to preserve the channel and enhance this 
waterway corridor with native grasses and forbs and have the ability to infiltrate runoff with a 
deep root system to improve the water quality.    
 
Outlots - Outlot A is located between the waterway and Wellington Drive. This is currently listed 
as an outlot until the floodplain is boundary is amended after which it will be re-platted for a new 
buildable lot along the east side of Wellington Drive. Outlot B is the remaining portion of the plat 
intended for future development.   
 
Tracts - Tract A is reserved for the waterway and floodplain from W. 12th Street to the north side 
of the Keagle’s Crossing culvert. Tract B is a storm water detention basin located west of the 
waterway along the south edge of the plat. Tract C is a 17-foot wide strip of land along the south 
side of W. 12th Street. This tract will be dedicated to the City for street right of way purposes in 
the event that W. 12th Street is widened in the future. Tract D include the following streets: 
 

 Tierney Terrace is the first street extending easterly off of Union Road approximately 
360 feet to its intersection with Peters Parkway. This street is approximately 450 feet 
south of the W. 12th Street intersection with Union Road. 

 Sonoma Drive is the second street extension off of Union Road that lines up with the 
existing Sonoma Drive in the Wild Horse Addition. Sonoma Drive ties into Peters 
Parkway. This street is approximately 850 feet south of the W. 12th Street intersection 
with Union Road. 

 Keagle’s Crossing extends south off of Sonoma Drive and curves to the east to connect 
into the western extension of Wellington Drive. 

 Wellington Drive is located on the east side of the waterway. This street begins at W. 
12th Street, approximately 800 feet east of Union Road. The street travels south and 
curves easterly to the eastern edge of the plat. Eventually this section of Wellington 
Drive will connect into the existing section of Wellington Drive in the Lexington Heights 
subdivision. There is a different property owner that separates the two subdivisions and 
eventually the two street sections will connect. It is important to provide connection 
between the neighborhoods to disperse and circulate the traffic.  

 Peters Parkway is another street that parallels the west side of the waterway beginning 
at Tierney Terrace and heading to the south property line. Again, the future extension of 
this street will tie into the development of the adjoining properties. This street is located 
so that it can be extended in a manner that avoids conflicting with the existing home to 
the south. If and when the property owner to the south decides to sell or desires to 
subdivide the property for additional development, this street connection will provide an 
opportunity for additional development lots backing up to the waterway with street 
connections to neighborhoods to the south and north.  

 The section at the north end of Peters Parkway is identified as a private street to 
access the multi-unit dwelling and patio homes. There is a turnaround at the north end. 

39



It was decided that a street connection to 12th Street in this location is not 
recommended, since it would be too close to the intersection and thus might create 
traffic movement and circulation problems in the corridor. This is consistent with what 
was approved with the master plan presented with the rezoning.  

 

All streets will be 31-feet wide in a 60-foot public right of way. 
 
Tract E is a second stormwater detention basin located north and east of the waterway along 
the south side of Wellington Drive. Tract F is reserved for the waterway and floodplain from the 
Keagle’s Crossing culvert to the eastern limits of the plat.  
 
A 4-foot wide public sidewalk will be installed along all street frontages and the petitioner will 
participate in the cost to construct a 10-foot wide recreational trail along Union Road. 
 
The Deed of Dedication in association with the plat submittal is straightforward. The Deed 
language outlines the requirements for the developer and restricts the development of each lot 
in accordance with the RP concept plan. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
Utilities - City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, noted that the water, 
electric, gas and communication services are available to the site from W. 12th Street and Union 
Road. There is a water connection fee of $55,833.14 for this property based on the street lineal 
footage of W. 12th Street and Union Road. This connection fee is part of the cost of the original 
water main installations on W. 12th Street and on Union Road. The water connection fee is 
collected at the time of final platting. The developer is responsible for the construction of a properly 
sized water system from the 12” water main on Union and 12th and throughout the proposed 
development. Included in the installation are valves and water service stubs for the new lots. Final 
fire hydrant and valve placement locations will be part of the construction plan review.  
 
Stormwater Management – There has been considerable discussion about management of the 
stormwater. Neighboring property owners surrounding this development site have noted the 
existing drainage patterns and concerns with additional run-off issues coming from the drainage 
area surrounding the proposed subdivision. The petitioner’s engineer has designed the 
subdivision to meet and exceed the City’s storm water management ordinance requirements for 
new development in addition to reducing the runoff rate to the downstream properties from the 
current use of row crop production. 
 
The Cedar Falls stormwater management regulations require new developments to collect and 
detain stormwater from the development site along with managing the stormwater from adjacent 
developments. The proposed design exceeds the ordinance standards. The existing run off from 
the row crops is calculated at 10.3 cfs (cubic feet per second) for the 2 year event. The design 
will go above and beyond the city’s standards and reduce the 2 year event to 5.5 cfs. This is a 
slower release rate than what is currently occurring on the site. When applying the 100-year 
discharge between the existing row crop conditions to post development, there will be a 30% 
reduction from on-site and pass-through stormwater discharge. 
 
The proposed the stormwater management plan for the Terraces at West Glen is handled by 
open detention basins, one on the westerly side of the waterway and the other on the easterly 
side of the waterway. The westerly basin (Tract B) will collect the stormwater runoff from the 
streets and lots on the west side of the waterway. The runoff on the east side of the waterway 

40



will empty into the stormwater basin (Tract E) that is south of Wellington Drive near the eastern 
edge of the plat. The designated runoff from within the site and from off-site areas will flow to the 
detention facilities with the flow along Tract A and areas to the northeast into the waterway. 
 
In addition to the detention basins, storm sewers will be installed along the roadway and 
throughout the plat. Currently, the Wild Horse subdivision collects in the ditch on the west side 
of Union Road and travels through a pipe under the road to the petitioner’s property. A new 
storm sewer will be installed in the middle of Lot 2 to collect the existing drainage from the west. 
These storm sewers will be installed as a part of this development to accommodate 25 year 
storm. A typical storm sewer design will accommodate a 10 year storm. The street provides 
excess flow in the gutter to the detention basins. Each detention basin has a multi-stage outlet 
to control discharge. The design will treat 1.25” of rainfall for 24 hours for water quality to meet 
the City’s standards. The proposed detention basins will address both water quantity and water 
quality of stormwater runoff. A drainage ditch will be graded along the south edge of the plat (Lot 
4) and is located in a 50’ drainage easement. This ditch will collect the off-site stormwater from 
the west into an overland flow route and will be graded to move the stormwater to the detention 
basin in Tract B. The stormwater flow will be directed away from the adjoining property owner to 
the south. In summary, the proposed design of the stormwater management plan for the 
Terraces at West Glen exceeds the city’s ordinance standards. 
 
Sanitary Sewer - The sanitary sewer is located through the middle of the development site. The 
sanitary sewer will be extended throughout the site during the construction of the roadways. The 
sanitary sewer service serving this area is subject to the Cherrywood Interceptor Sewer District 
tapping fee of $294.63 per acre which was established by the City Council several years ago. 
The sewer fee is collected at the time of final platting. 
 
The City’s Subdivision Ordinance outlines the requirements pertaining to Subdivision Plats. A 
Preliminary Subdivision Plat represents a “conceptual development plan” which the City must 
review and evaluate to insure compliance with all City regulations. Issues related to zoning 
regulations, utility easement provision, street locations and alignments and other factors are all 
subject to review and approval by City staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission and the 
City Council. Following Preliminary Plat approval by the City Council, the developer is free to 
begin installing the necessary public improvements (i.e. streets, sewers, waterlines, etc.) as 
indicated on the plat. 
 
A Final Subdivision Plat formalizes the Preliminary Plat and authorizes the developer to begin 
selling lots and to begin building on the newly created lots. Normally a Final Subdivision Plat 
cannot be approved until all of the required public improvements have been installed and 
completed to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. A Final Plat can be “expedited” prior to full 
completion and acceptance of public improvements provided that the developer posts a cash 
bond or escrow agreement with the City Engineering Division which serves as a financial 
guarantee that all the improvements will be installed in a timely fashion. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Gather any comments from the Planning and Zoning Commission and public then continue the 
discussion at the next Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on July 10, 2019 with the 
following conditions: 
  

1. Any comments or direction specified by the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
2. Conform to all city staff recommendations and technical requirements. 

41



University
of Northern

Iowa

University of
Northern Iowa

Robinson-Dresser
Sports

Complex

Pheasant Ridge
Golf Course Walters

Ridge Golf
Course

Concord Cir

W Sunshine Ln

Beaver Rd

Q

uail Ridge
R
d

S
k
y
lin

e
 D

r

P
o
s
s
u
m

 R
d

Wild Horse Dr

C
o

lu
m

b
in

e
D

r

High St

CherrywoodDr

Q
u a il Hollow Ln

Sonoma Dr

Cobblestone Ct

Waterbury Dr

Stratford Ct

Covey Ct

R

ocky Ri d
g

e
R

d

L
e

x
in

g
to

n
 D

r

Q
uail

R
u

n
L
n

Blair R

id
ge

R
d

Jakob Cir

AlexisBlvd

Wellington Dr

Granite Ridge Rd

Frontier Rd

Pendleton Dr

Normandy Dr

W 12th St

Newland Dr

Prairie Rd

B
ird

sa
ll
Par

k
D

r

W 12th St
U

n
io

n
 R

d

W 27th St

R-1

R-1

RP

C-2

R-4

RP

P

R-2

A-1

A-1

Cedar Falls Planning & Zoning Commission
June 26, 2019

The Terraces at West Glen
Preliminary Plat

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

H
u

d
s
o

n
R

d

C
e

d
a

r
H

e
ig

hts

D
r

P
r
a

irie
P

k
w

y

WRidg

eway Ave

University Ave

W
aterloo

R
d

Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

Vik
in

gRd

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Greenhill Rd

C

ente
r

S
t

S
 M

a
in

 S
t

M
a

in
 S

t

W 1st St

W 12th St

U
n

io
n
 R

d

E 1st St

W 27th St

Lincoln St

N

U
nion

R
d

E Lone Tree Rd

L
e

v
e

rs
e

e
R

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

42



April 22, 2019 
 
Mr. David Sturch 
City of Cedar Falls 
Planning and Community Services 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA  50613 
 
Re:  The Terraces at West Glen Preliminary Plat 
 
Dear Mr. Sturch: 
 
Terraces at West Glen, LLC is pleased to present a preliminary plat for a proposed residential 
subdivision located within Lot 2 of Robinson’s Minor Plat of part of the NW ¼ of Section 15, 
89N, R14W in the City of Cedar Falls, named The Terraces at West Glen.  Specifically, the 
project location is at the southeasterly quadrant of West 12th Street and Union Road and 
consists of 42.349 acres.  This real estate is being acquired from Money Pit, LLC. 
 
To meet City of Cedar Falls platting requirements, the overall adjacent holdings of the 
current owner are included in the preliminary plat (239.692 acres).  The area beyond the 
42.349 acres is identified as an ‘Outlot for Future Development’ and is not a part of the 
development proposed by Terraces at West Glen LLC.  We are showing only the overall 
boundary dimensions and area of this outlot. 
 
The development will be an age 55+ campus as an extension of NewAldaya Lifescapes senior 
living services.  The housing concept will consist of approximately 19 single homes, 22 duplex 
homes and two multi-story units with approximately 42 and 30 units respectively.  At full 
build-out, approximately 135 housing units will be constructed. 
 
Zoning of the 42.349 acres is R-P (planned residential).  This allows a mixture of housing unit 
types and is a perfect fit for the proposed development.  Ownership of the real estate, 
except for street right of way dedicated to the City of Cedar Falls, will be by Terraces at 
West Glen LLC.    
 
Utilities are currently readily available within or around the perimeter of the proposed 
subdivision and will be extended throughout the 42.349 acres.  All utilities will be installed 
within the street right of way or utility easements. 
 
Storm water is a major consideration of not only the proposed subdivision but also 
downstream properties. Our proposed subdivision will meet the City’s storm water 
management ordinance requirements for new development in addition to reducing runoff rate 
to downstream properties from the current use of row crop production.  A corridor for the 
flood plain will remain through the approximate middle of the property.  This flood plain has 
a long history of varying depicted sizes subject to the best available elevation data at the 
time.  Our design incorporates accurate elevation data as well as grading improvements to 
the waterway which allow a narrower flood plain.  Adjacent homes will be elevated well 
above the 500-year elevation.  This corridor will be vegetated with native grasses and 
flowers, offering an enhanced environmental state from the existing condition and an 
attractive visual appearance. 
 

43



The development will be phased with schedule subject to the market demand.  The first 
phases of construction will be west of the waterway and will consist of the public 
infrastructure for the westerly area.  Single and duplex homes will be constructed at the 
approximate rate of 10-12 per year.  The first multi-story structure may start construction 
around year 3 or 4.   
 
We are excited to get started with construction and look forward to providing a needed 
housing option to the City of Cedar Falls.  We thank City staff for all the assistance in getting 
us to this point and look forward to continuing our relationship as we work through the 
development process. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Millisa Tierney 
CEO, Terraces at West Glen LLC 

44



45



46



47



 

DEED OF DEDICATION 
OF 

THE TERRACES AT WEST GLEN PHASE I 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 

That Terraces at West Glen, L.L.C., an Iowa Nonprofit Corporation, with its principal 
office in Cedar Falls, Iowa; being desirous of setting out and platting the land described in the 
attached Certificate of Survey by Lyle G. TeKippe, a Professional Engineer and Licensed Land 
Surveyor, dated the 22nd day of April, 2019, do by these presents designate and set apart the 
aforesaid premises as a subdivision of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa the same to be known as: 
 

THE TERRACES AT WEST GLEN PHASE I 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA 

all of which is with the free consent and the desire of the undersigned and the undersigned do 
hereby designate and set apart for public use the street(s) as shown upon the attached plat. 

EASEMENTS 

The undersigned do hereby grant and convey to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its 
successors and assigns, and to any private corporation, firm or person furnishing utilities for the 
transmission and/or distribution of water, sanitary sewer, gas, electricity, communication service 
or cable television, perpetual easements for the erection, laying building and maintenance of said 
services over, across, on and/or under the property as shown on the attached plat. 
 

RESTRICTIONS 

Be it also known that the undersigned do hereby covenant and agree for themselves and 
their successors and assigns that the real estate is subject to the following restrictions its use and 
occupancy as fully and effectively to all intents and purposes as if the same were contained and 
set forth in each deed of conveyance or mortgage that the undersigned or their successors in 
interest may hereinafter make for any of said lots and that such restrictions shall run with the 
land to-wit: 

1. Any dwelling erected shall have a minimum setback as indicated on the Final 
Plat. All minimum setbacks will be required to meet or exceed R-P Zoning. 

2. The owner shall keep the real estate free of weeds and debris. 

3.  All approaches and driveways in said subdivision shall constructed in accordance 
with applicable Cedar Falls Ordinance. 

4.  Owner shall comply with all requirements of the US Post Office for mail 
receptacles. 

5.  No bus, semi-tractor, RV, fifth-wheel camper, trailer or truck of any kind except 

48



 

what is commonly described as a “pick-up truck” shall be kept or parked on any lot or street in 
said subdivision for a period not to exceed twenty-four hours, after which said vehicle cannot 
return to said subdivision for a period of five days, provided, however, that this prohibition shall 
not apply to such vehicles driven in said subdivision in pursuit of and in conducting their usual 
business. 

 
6.  All buildings erected on the real estate shall be constructed in accordance with the 

Building, Plumbing, and Electrical Codes of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

7. No animals, livestock, or poultry of any kind shall be raised, bred or kept on the 
real estate.  Household pets only subject to Owner/Developer approval.  

8. Sidewalks and trails shall be constructed according to and as reflected on the Plat. 

9. Any and all drainage easements will be required to follow the “Stormwater 
Management Plan” and no building structures, fence structures, landscaping structures, private 
gardens or any other possible obstruction can be built in and over said drainage easements.  
Owner and/or contractors working on the real estate will be responsible to maintain said 
easements to be free and clear of any physical obstruction(s) thus allowing the conveyance of 
overland storm water runoff as intended per “Stormwater Management Plan” on record with the 
City of Cedar Falls Engineer's Office. 

10. Tracts “C” and “D” to be deeded to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa for street 
purposes. 

 
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED IN PLAT 

1. The Street(s) shown on the attached plat, will be brought to City grade and that 
the street will be thirty-one (31) feet, back of curb to back of curb, with approved hard surface 
pavement in accordance with the City of Cedar Falls, Standard Specifications unless otherwise 
specified as per approved construction plans. 

 
2. Sanitary sewer, together with the necessary manholes and sewer service lines to 

the platted real estate will be provided. 

3. That underground utilities, as required by the Subdivision Ordinance of the City 
of Cedar Falls, Iowa, shall be installed. 

4. That city water will be provided to the platted real estate as required by the Cedar 
Falls Municipal Utilities, 

5. That municipal fire hydrant(s) will be provided as required by the Cedar Falls 
Public Safety Department. 

6. That Storm sewer will be provided as specified by the City Engineer. 

7. That handicap ramps will be provided as required by law. 

8. All buildings erected on the platted real estate shall be constructed in accordance 
with the building, plumbing and electrical codes of the City of Cedar Falls. 

49



 

9. That the work improvements called herein shall be in accordance with the 
specifications of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and performed under the supervision of the City 
Engineer. In the event that the developer, Terraces at West Glen, LLC, its grantees and assigns 
fail to complete said work and improvements called for within ______ (____) year from the date 
of the acceptance of said final plat by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, the City may then make 
improvements and assess the costs of the same to the platted real estate. The undersigned, for 
themselves, their successors, grantees and assigns, waive all statutory requirements of notice of 
time and place of healing and agree that the City may install said improvements and assess the 
total costs thereof against the respective lots. 

10.  That the City may perform said work, levy the cost thereof as assessments, and 
the undersigned agree that said assessments so levied shall be a lien on the platted real estate 
with the same force and effect as though all legal provisions pertaining to the levy of such 
special assessments have been observed, and further authorize the City Clerk to certify such 
assessments to the County Auditor as assessments to be paid in installments as provided by law. 

11.  The Developer shall construct and install all required public improvements within 
the subdivision plat, to conform with approved construction plans which meet the specifications 
of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. Such required public improvements shall meet the following 
requirements: 

 
A. Shall be constructed and installed in a good and workmanlike manner; 

B. Shall be free of defects in workmanship or materials; 

C. Shall be free of any conditions that could result in structural or other failure of said 
improvements; 

 
D. Shall be constructed and installed in accordance with the design standards and 

technical standards established for such public improvements by the City and by 
Cedar Falls Utilities; 

E. Shall be constructed and installed in strict compliance with the minimum acceptable 
specifications for the construction of public improvements set forth in the Cedar Falls 
Code of Ordinances, including without limitation. Chapter 24, Subdivisions, and as 
such specifications shall be recommended for approval by the City Engineer from 
time to time, and approved by the city council. 

12.  The Developer’s construction plans are now on file in the Office of the City 
Engineer. 

  

50



 

SIGNED and DATED this ____ day of _____________ , 2019. 
 

Terraces at West Glen, L.L.C. 
 
 
       
Millisa Tierney, CEO 
Cedar Falls Lutheran Home  
n/k/a NewAldaya Lifescapes 
 

 
 

STATE OF IOWA, BLACK HAWK COUNTY: ss 

On this day of _______________ , 2019, before me, the undersigned, a Notary 
Public in and for the State of Iowa, personally appeared Millisa Tierney, CEO, Cedar Falls 
Lutheran Home n/k/a NewAldaya  Lifescapes, Member/Manager of Terraces at West Glen, LLC, 
to me known as the identical persons named in and who executed the foregoing instrument and 
acknowledged that they executed the same as their voluntary act and deed on behalf of Terraces 
at West Glen, LLC. 
 

 
 

             
      Notary Public 

51



� 

THE TERRACES AT WEST GLEN
DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT

PHASE 1a

PHASE 3

PHASE 2a PHASE 1b

PHASE 5

PHASE 2b

PH
ASE 4a

PH
ASE 4a

PHASE 4b

PHASE 4b

Projected Unit Summary:
Single Units - 25 = 25 Units
Twin Units - 22 = 44 Units
2-Story Multi-Unit - East = 22 Units
3-Story Multi-Unit - NW = 44 Units
Total Dwelling Units = 135 Units

1 2 3 4

5

6

7

8

910

11 12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20 21

22 23 24 25

1

2

3
4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19 20 21

22

NewAldaya Terraces at West Glen
Preliminary Phasing Plan - Updated 05/22/2019

52



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 
  Matthew Tolan, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: June 19, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Chrisbro Subdivision Preliminary Plat 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to approve the Chrisbro Subdivision Preliminary Plat. Case #PP19-008 
 

PETITIONER: Chrisbro III Inc. 
 

LOCATION: 
 

The property is located on 12.18 acres of land at the northwest corner of 
Nordic Drive and Commerce Drive 
 

 

PROPOSAL 
The petitioner owns the 12.18 acre parcel at the northwest corner of Nordic Drive and 
Commerce Drive. The proposed subdivision will divide the existing lot into four commercial lots.  
 
BACKGROUND 
The Lockard Pines subdivision was created in the summer of 2003. This subdivision is located 
at the northwest corner of Highway 58 and W. Ridgeway Avenue. Over the years, commercial 
development has expanded in this area, which includes the Super 8 Motel, Kwik Star, Farm 
Credit Services and Comfort Suites. One of the remaining lots in this subdivision was purchased 
by the petitioner in the spring of 2011. A site plan for a new Hilton hotel was reviewed by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council in 2011. In the fall of 2017, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and City Council reviewed and approved a site plan for a conference center 
addition to the existing Hilton Garden Inn and a site plan for a second hotel on the property. 
 
The petitioner intends to split the existing 12.18 acre parcel into four (4) commercial lots and two 
(2) tracts for stormwater management. Lot 1 is reserved for the existing Hilton Garden Inn and 
Conference Center, Lot 2 is for the second hotel and Lots 3 & 4 will be developed for a 
commercial use. Site plan review for Lots 3 & 4 will be brought before the Planning and Zoning 
Commission at a later date. The proposed Chrisbro Subdivision is essentially a re-plat of Lot 3 
of the Lockard Pines Addition. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The petitioner, Chrisbro Inc. proposes to plat 12.18 acres of land at the northwest corner of 
Nordic Drive and Commerce Drive. The plat includes four commercial lots and two tracts for 

53



stormwater management. The property is located in the HWY-1 commercial zoning district. Any 
development on these lots requires site plan review by the Planning and Zoning Commission 
and City Council. The site plan review process was completed for the two hotel projects on Lots 
1 and 2. The future development for Lots 3 and 4 will be brought before the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and City Council at a later time. 
 
Tracts A and B are reserved for stormwater detention for all the lots. Chrisbro will own these 
tracts and will be responsible for the maintenance and upkeep of these basins. There are no 
public improvements needed for these lots and all utility connections are private from the 
property line to the building. The Hilton Garden Inn is currently served with a 24-foot wide 
driveway from Nordic Drive and Commerce Drive. Access to both hotels and the future 
commercial businesses on Lots 3 and 4 will utilize these driveways. 
 
The HWY-1 zoning district requires a 20-foot setback along Nordic Drive and Commerce Drive 
and along the north and west side of the plat. The current hotel on Lot 1 and the proposed hotel 
on Lot 2 satisfy these setback requirements. There are no setbacks required along the interior 
driveways and access ways into the site. The setback along the north and west side of the plat 
include some steep slopes that were created during the grading of the site. The property owner 
has maintained these sloped areas in turf grass and mows it on a regular basis. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, noted that the water, gas 
and communication services are available to the site. The developer will be responsible for 
extending the utility services to the proposed development. All utilities are in place for the Hilton 
Garden Inn. The electric and fiber optics extend off the north side of the building and travel 
along the north property line to Nordic Drive. The water service extends off the north side of the 
hotel and travels around the new convention center addition to the driveway and out to Nordic 
Drive. The sanitary sewer extends off the south side of the hotel and travels southward to 
Commerce Drive. The storm water is collected in the existing parking lots and flow into the inlets 
around the parking lot and driveways and empty into the detention basins identified as Tract A 
and B. The proposed hotel on Lot 2 will extend their utilities to the south into the existing lines 
along Commerce Drive. The stormwater for the second hotel will be collected in the proposed 
parking lot and transferred via sewer to the detention basin on Tract A. Additional utility 
connections for Lots 3 and 4 will be reviewed at a later date when those site plans are submitted 
to the City.   
 
The property is located outside of the designated 100-year floodplain.   
 
The platting documents including the Deed of Dedication, City Council resolution forms and a 
plat fee have been submitted. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the Chrisbro Subdivision 
Preliminary Plat with the following stipulations: 

1) Any comments or direction specified by the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
2) Conform to all city staff recommendations and technical requirements.  

54



S
P

ra
ir
ie

L
a

k
e

D

ry
R

u
n

C
re

e
k

(S
)

Technology
Park

Industrial
Park

CFU
Solar

Garden

Prairie
Lakes
Park

A
c
e

 P
l

Shawnee Rd

P
ri
n

c
e
to

n
 A

v
e

Le
xi n

g
t o

n
B

lv
d

T
re

n
to

n
 A

v
e

Viking Plaza Dr

C
h

a
n

c
e

l lo
r

D
r

E
n
te

rp
ri

s
e

 D
r

Blackhawk Ln

Columbia St

Scranton St

Concord St

Richmond St

Camden St

Montclair St

N
o

rd
ic

D
r

Commerce Dr

Performance Dr

Savannah Park Rd

Technology Pkwy

E Ridgeway AveW Ridgeway Ave

R-4
M-2-P

M-1

HWY-1

PC-2

HWY-1

M-1-P

BR

A-1

HWY-1

A-1

A-1

PC-2

A-1

®¬27

®¬58

£¤20

Camping World

Kwik
Star

Mudd
Office

Principal
Financial

Group
Kryton

Hilton
Garden Inn

Team Campus

Mudd
Campus

Purdue
Univ

Global

D&J
Inv

Curbtender

Martin Bros
Office

DISTek PPG
Coating

Serv

Veridian
Credit
Union

UPS

Hy Pro

Star
4D

Martin Bros
Distributing

The Gym

Target

Iowa
Laser Tech

Scientific
Games

Scheels

Retail

CBE Group

Standard
Distribution

John Deere
Tractor

Operations
Fleet Farm

Cedar Falls Planning & Zoning Commission
June 26, 2019

Chrisbro Subdivision Preliminary Plat

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

H
u

d
s
o

n
R

d

C
e

d
a

r
H

e
ig

hts

D
r

P
r
a

irie
P

k
w

y

WRidg

eway Ave

University Ave

W
aterloo

R
d

Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

Vik
in

gRd

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Greenhill Rd

C

ente
r

S
t

S
 M

a
in

 S
t

M
a

in
 S

t

W 1st St

W 12th St

U
n

io
n
 R

d

E 1st St

W 27th St

Lincoln St

N

U
nion

R
d

E Lone Tree Rd

L
e

v
e

rs
e

e
R

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

^
Location

Map

55



56



DEED OF DEDICATION 

FOR 

CHRISBRO SUBDIVISION, 

CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA 

 

 

 KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 

 That Chrisbro III, Inc., hereinafter “Owner,” being desirous of setting out and platting the 

land described in the attached Legal Description, Exhibit “A”, does by these present designate 

and set apart the aforesaid premises as a subdivision of the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk 

County, Iowa, the same to be hereafter known as: 

 

 Chrisbro Subdivision, Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa, 

 

All of which is with the free consent and desire of the said Owner, and the Owner does hereby 

dedicate and set apart for public use the streets and roads shown on the attached Plat. 

 

EASEMENTS 

 

 The Owner hereby grants and conveys to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its successors and 

assigns, and to any private corporation, firm or person furnishing utilities for the transmission 

and/or distribution of water, gas, sewer, electricity, communication service or cable television, 

perpetual easements for the construction, laying, building, and maintenance of said services over, 

under, across, and upon the property as shown on the attached Plat, Exhibit “B”. 

 

RESTRICTIONS 

 

 The Owner does hereby covenant and agree for itself and its successors and assigns that 

each and all of the lots in said subdivision be and the same are hereby made subject to the 

following restrictions upon their use and occupancy as fully and effectively as if the same were 

contained and set forth in each deed of conveyance or mortgage that the undersigned or its 

successors in interest may hereinafter make for any of said lots and that such restrictions shall 

run with the land and with each individual lot thereof for the length of time and in all particulars 

hereinafter stated, to-wit: 

 

1. The development of this property shall be in accordance with and governed by the   

Hwy-1, Highway Commercial Zoning District set forth in the Cedar Falls Zoning 

Ordinance. 

 

2. Invalidation of these restrictions by judgment, decree or court order shall in no way 

affect any of the other provisions of this Deed of Dedication and such other 

provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

3. The covenants and restrictions set forth in this Deed of Dedication shall run with the 

land and shall inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the owner of any land 

57



located in the plat, which is the subject of this Deed of Dedication, and their legal 

representatives, heirs, successors and assigns for a term of twenty-one (21) years from 

and after the date of filing of this plat in the office of the Recorder of Black Hawk 

County, Iowa.  Said covenants and restrictions may be extended for successive 

twenty-one (21) year periods thereafter, upon the filing of a verified claim by the 

owner of any one (1) lot or tract in the subdivision, in the manner provided in Iowa 

Code Sections 614.24 through 614.28, Code of Iowa. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been signed at _____________________, 

___________, this _______ day of _____________________, 2019. 

 

 

 

     Chrisbro III, Inc. 

  

 

     By: ____________________________________ 

 

 

 

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA ) 

     ) ss 

COUNTY OF ____________  ) 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ______ day of _______________, 

2019 by _________________________, President of Chrisbro Hospitality. 

 

 

      _________________________________________ 

      Notary Public in and for the State of South Dakota 

58


	Top
	1. Planning and Zoning minutes from June 12
	06-12-2019 P and Z Minutes.docx

	2. Cherrywood Acres Minor Plat
	1 Staff report for Cherrywood Acres Minor Plat 6-17-19.docx
	2 ZoningLocationMap.pdf
	3 MINOR PLAT (6-20-2019).pdf
	4 MINOR PLAT to Record 5-22-19.pdf
	5 Signed Owners Statement DOD.pdf
	6 Cherrywood Acres.pdf

	3. Western Home Communities Ninth Addition Final Plat
	1 P&amp;Z staff report for Western Home 9th Final Plat on 6-13-19.docx
	2 ZoningLocationMap.pdf
	3 WHC 9th Final Plat 6-10 b.pdf
	4 Deed of Dedication 9th Addn.pdf
	5 Pedestrian Trail Access Easement Vac Map.pdf
	6 Pedestrian Trail Access Easement Vac. Plat Rev1.pdf

	4. The Terraces at West Glen Preliminary Plat
	1_P&amp;Z staff report terraces at west glen PP 6-26-19.docx
	2 ZoningLocationMap.pdf
	3 Request Letter.docx
	4 Preliminary Plat 042219.pdf
	5 Deed of Dedication - Draft - 042219.pdf
	6 West Glen Development Concept Phasing 5-22-19.pdf

	5. Chrisbro Subdivision Preliminary Plat
	1 PZ staff report for Chrisbro  Preliminary Plat on 6-17-19.docx
	2 ZoningLocationMap.pdf
	3 Chrisbro PP 6-10-19.pdf
	4 DEED OF DEDICATION.pdf

	Bottom

